
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Investment Subcommittee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Wednesday, 24 June 2015 at 10.00 am 

Location: Goscote Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Mr. M. Hand (Tel. 0116 305 6038) 

Email: matthew.hand@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. G. A. Hart CC (Chairman) 

 
Cllr. P. Kitterick 

Mr. K. W. P. Lynch CC 
                                   Mr. J. Shuter 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC 
Mr. N. Booth 
Cllr. M. Graham 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Election of Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

2.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2015.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

3.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

7.  
  

Recommended Investment in Markham Rae 
Trade Capital Partners I.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 7 - 20) 

8.  
  

Date of Next Meeting - 22 July 2015.  
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
9.  

  
Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

 Exclusion of the Press and Public. 
 

 The public are likely to be excluded during consideration of the following items in 
accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (Exempt 
Information): 
 

10.  
  

Supplementary Presentation on 
Recommended Investment in Markham Rae 
Trade Capital Partners.  
 

Asset Manager 
 

 



 
Minutes of a meeting of the Investment Subcommittee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Wednesday, 29 April 2015.  
   

PRESENT: 
Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. G. A. Hart CC (Chairman) 
Mr. K. W. P. Lynch CC 
 

Mr. J. B. Rhodes CC 
 

Leicester City Council/District Council 
Representative 
 

 

Cllr. M. Graham  
 

University Representative  
  
 Mr. J. Shuter 
 

  
 

Independent Advisers and Managers  
 
Mr. S. Jamieson Independent Investment Adviser 
Mr. A. Green Hymans Robertson 
Mr. A. Swan M & G Investments Fund Manager 
Mr. P. Taylor M & G Investments Fund Manager 
 
71. Minutes.  
  
 The minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2014 were taken as read, 

confirmed and signed.   
 
72. Question Time.  
  
 The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under 

Standing Order 35.  
 
73. Questions asked by members.  
  
 The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under 

Standing Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 
74. Urgent Items.  
  
 There were no urgent items for consideration.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 23



 
 

 

75. Declarations of interest.  
  
 The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in 

respect of items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made.  

 
76. Recommended switch of investment with JPMorgan.  
  
 The Subcommittee received a report of the Director of Corporate Resources 

which outlined information concerning a proposed switch of investments 
between two credit funds managed by JPMorgan. A copy of the report is filed 
with these minutes marked ‘6’. 
 
It was noted that an investment in a Multi Sector Credit would enable the Fund 
to gain welcomed exposure in new markets. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That a switch of investment from the JPMorgan Strategic Bond Fund to the 
JPMorgan Multi Sector Credit Fund be approved subject to the acceptance of 
suitable investment fees.  
  

 
77. Recommended investment in M & G Debt Opportunities Fund III.  
  
 The Board considered a report by the Director of Corporate Resources, which 

provided members with background information relating to the Investment 
Manager interview to be held as part of item ‘10’ on the agenda . A copy of the 
report is filed with these minutes marked ‘7’.  
 
It was noted that previous Fund investments had been made into two M & G 
Debt Opportunities Funds (DOF). The original DOF Fund had become fully 
drawn in April 2014, whilst DOF II was expected to reach a similar stage in the 
next few months. An investment in a newly established DOF III, which was 
similar in structure to the previous two funds, would maintain the Funds 2.5% 
weighting within the ‘Opportunity Pool’ allocation. 
. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the information provided be noted. 
  

 
78. Date of Next Meeting.  
  
 It was noted that the next meeting would be held on 24 June 2015. 

  
 
 
 
 

4



 
 

 

79. Supplementary Presentation on Recommended Investment in M & G Debt 
Opportunities Fund III.  

  
 The Subcommittee received a presentation by representatives from M&G 

Investments which was followed by questions from members. A copy of the 
presentation is filed with these minutes marked ‘10’. The presentations were not 
for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the presentations delivered by the Investment Manager be noted; 
 

b) That a £40m commitment to invest in the M&G Debt Opportunities Fund 
III be made. 

  
Wednesday, 29 April 2015 
10.00 – 11.30am CHAIRMAN 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

INVESTMENT SUBCOMMITTEE  – 24TH JUNE 2015 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

RECOMMENDED INVESTMENT IN MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS I  
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To provide information in respect of a recommended investment in the Markham 
Rae Trade Capital Partners I LP (MRTCP). 

 
 Background 
 
2. The Fund has a target allocation of 4 – 6% of total Fund assets to the ‘Opportunity 

Pool’ concept. In broad terms these should be considered as investments that are 
expected to produce returns that are at least as high as those expected from 
equities markets, but which will provide an element of diversification from broad-
based equity markets. They will generally not fit comfortably elsewhere within the 
Fund’s overall asset allocation strategy, and will almost always be investments that 
take advantage of market opportunities that exist at a point-in-time but that appear 
unlikely to persist indefinitely. 

 
3. At present about 3.3% of the available Opportunities Pool funding has been 

deployed to two different strategies – specific opportunities within debt markets (via 
the M & G Debt Opportunities Funds) and exposure to undervalued areas of the 
commercial property market (via Kames Capital). The Fund retains a £32m 
investment within the Pictet Absolute Return Global Diversified Fund and this is the 
next source of financing for any further Opportunity Pool investments. 

 
4. MRTCP has been set up to take advantage of opportunities within trade finance that 

have come about as a result of the changing regulatory environment that banks are 
operating under, and more specifically the way in which trade finance is currently 
treated within a bank’s regulatory capital structure. It is now uneconomical for banks 
to retain the full risks associated with providing trade finance and they are willing to 
pay a healthy premium to investors that are willing to accept some of the risks, as 
this allows the bank to use significantly less of their own (expensive) capital. 

 
 What is Trade Finance? 
  
5. Trade finance is the generic term used to cover the financing and risk mitigation of 

cross-border trade. It differs from other types of lending as the transactions are 
identifiable to a specific source of repayment, which is usually the cash payment for 
the underlying goods that are being traded.  

 
6. Historically, banks have been a major player in the provision of trade finance as it 

has been a profitable and low risk form of lending for them. The transactions are 
short-term (averaging 150 days), identifiable to specific transactions and take 

Agenda Item 77



 

priority over most other forms of creditor in the event of a default. Nothing has 
changed to make trade finance any riskier, but changes to the way in which 
regulatory bank capital is assessed (particularly the implementation of the Basel III 
framework on bank capital adequacy) has made trade finance an activity that is 
barely profitable for banks. As a result banks are either exiting this market, or 
looking at ways of making trade finance more attractive to them. 

 
 The investment opportunity 
 
7. Within the banking regulatory environment, trade finance is treated in much the 

same way as other commercial banking activities in terms of the amount of 
regulatory capital the bank needs to hold to support the activity. This makes the 
provision of trade finance unattractive unless it is possible to reduce the amount of 
regulatory capital that is required to back the transactions. 

 
8. By arranging a mechanism for transferring some of the risk within trade financing 

deals, banks can receive approval from the regulators to hold less regulatory capital 
to support the activity. As this regulatory capital is expensive for banks (having 
averaged a cost of c.15% over the last 6 years), the bank can afford to pay a 
healthy premium to the counterparty that the risk is being transferred to. The risk 
transfer and the approval by regulators make trade financing an attractive activity 
for banks again. 

 
9. In very simplistic terms, MRTCP will assume part of the risk on trade financing 

transactions and will receive a premium (in effect an insurance premium) for doing 
this. Typically the risk taken is between a 1% and 7% loss, and the historic loss rate 
is well below the 1% threshold at which an investor in MRTCP starts to see any 
capital erosion. The target investment return for the fund is 10% - 12% p.a. (net of 
all costs) and this is a highly attractive return to investors, and a return that fits in 
well with the expectations for the Opportunity Pool. 

 
10. MRTCP is clearly not risk-free but the fact that defaults on trade finance remained 

low even in the midst of the Global Financial Crisis suggest that, with good selection 
of counterparties and expert management of the risks involved, the target return is 
achievable. 

 
11. Markham Rae is a small investment manager with assets of $600m under 

management. They currently offer only two strategies – Macro Fixed Interest and 
Trade Finance. The individuals involved in managing MRTCP have significant 
experience in the area of trade finance and are well placed to be able to access 
appropriate opportunities. The company has ‘first mover’ advantage for this 
investment opportunity and is acutely aware that, if successful, the opportunity will 
be ‘arbitraged away’ by other investors accessing the market and being willing to 
take lower returns in order to gain exposure. 

 
12. MRTCP is seeking to raise $750m from investors and already has commitments for 

about half of this amount, including a $200m commitment from a leading UK 
Pension Fund. Talks with a number of potential banking partners are at advanced 
stages, and they believe that speedy deployment of the capital to acceptable banks 
is highly probable. 

 
 

8



 

Risks 
 

13. Every investment carries risks, and MRTCP has a number of them. Some of these 
risks are listed below, together with comments about how these risks are mitigated: 

 
 Concentration risk  

MRTCP are likely to invest with 3 – 4 different banks, and these banks will be 
chosen with due regard to the strength of their processes for assessing risk. The 
background of the Markham Rae managers means that they have a deep 
understanding of the risks involved and are able to form their own judgement on the 
adequacy of the banks’ credit assessments. 
 
Markham Rae will also impose eligibility criteria and replenishment rules for the 
portfolios received from the banks, which will ensure that there is no ‘cherry picking’ 
of the riskiest trade finance loans by the banks. 
 
‘Key Man’ risk 
A clause within MRTCP means that no further drawdowns of capital can be made 
for new investments if Luigi La Ferla (Senior Portfolio Manager with 30-years of 
industry participation in trade finance) is no longer involved with the fund. Were this 
to occur, monitoring of the existing portfolio would continue and in extremis 
investors may remove Markham Rae as the manager (without any compensation) if 
50% approval for this is received from investors. 
 
 Reputational risk  
Markham Rae incorporates ESG (Environment, Social and Governance) 
considerations into its investment decisions prior to transaction execution, and 
expects robust Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) compliance as a basic ESG 
requirement. Its assessments go deeper than this and if the counterparty bank 
cannot satisfy Markham Rae that their ESG due diligence is sufficiently robust, they 
will not be used.  
 
Default risk 
There will almost undoubtedly be individual trade finance agreement defaults, and 
recovery rates on these average c.60%. The losses are, however, assessed on the 
whole of the portfolio from each bank and this mitigates the risks associated with 
individual losses. Historic trade finance losses have been well below the 1% level at 
which the fund starts to lose any capital and would probably need to average above 
1.2% for returns below 10% for annum to be achieved. 
 
Collateral risk 
There is no ‘gearing’ allowed within MRTCP and the cash covering the risk that is 
being assumed is invested in short-dated US treasury instruments. As all the fund’s 
assets will be denominated in US dollars, there is no currency mismatch between 
the assets and the collateral. 
 
Fees 
 

14. Fees paid within MRTCP are 1% p.a. of committed capital, plus a performance 
related fee of 15% on any returns to investors of above 8% p.a. These fees are high 
when compared to fees on quoted market investments but in line with those payable 

9



 

on private market investments which involve the need to have deep, specialist 
knowledge of the investment opportunities that are available.  

 
 Summary 
 
15. This report is not intended to be an exhaustive analysis of the investment 

opportunity, and the Hymans Robertson note that is attached as an appendix 
provides further details. Markham Rae has also produced a presentation and will be 
in attendance at today’s meeting to explain the investment more fully. 

 
16. The investment is via a closed-ended English Limited Partnership that will have 1 

year to deploy the commitments and a further 5.25 years to return the capital to 
investors. In exchange for being willing to accept this illiquidity, there is a 
reasonable expectation of a 10% - 12% p.a. return. There is also evidence to 
suggest that returns from this strategy will have little correlation to returns in other 
investment markets. This investment fits extremely well into the purpose of the 
Opportunity Pool. 

 
17. Most closed-end investment funds have an agreed term that is linked to the period 

taken to invest and then successfully realise the investments. The relatively short-
term nature of individual trade finance agreements and the expectation that the 
capital can be invested relatively quickly should mean that the term could be much 
shorter than the intended 6.25 years. In the case of this particular investment 
opportunity, the bank’s regulator requires assurance that the transactions achieve 
true risk transfer for a sufficiently long period of time in order to ‘sign-off’ approval to 
a reduction in the required regulatory capital. It is for this reason that the investment 
term needs to be for at, or above, 5 -6 years. 

 
18. The intention is that every investment within the Opportunity Pool will be large 

enough to have a noticeable impact onto total Fund performance, and that there will 
be between 6 – 10 investments within it by the time that it is fully deployed. An 
investment of 0.75% (c. £25m) of the total Fund seems appropriate. As MRTCP is 
denominated in US Dollars, this equates to broadly $40m. 

 

 Supplementary Information Informing the Recommendation to approve a 
$40m commitment to invest in the Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners 
 
An exempt presentation by Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners informing the 

proposed investment, which is of a sensitive nature, is included as item 10 on the 

agenda. 
  

Recommendation 
 
19. The Investment Subcommittee is recommended to approve a $40m commitment to 

invest in the Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners. 
 
 Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
 
 

10



 

Appendix 
 
Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners – briefing note by Hymans Robertson. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Attached as appendix 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Colin Pratt, Investments Manager 
Telephone (0116) 305 7656 
Email: Colin.Pratt@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Assistant Director Strategic Finance & Property 
Telephone (0116) 305 6199 
Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 001 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners (MRTCP) 

Addressee 

This note has been prepared by Hymans Robertson for the Investment Sub-Committee of Leicestershire County 

Council Pension Fund (LCCPF). 

Introduction  

Markham Rae is a specialist London based credit manager. The firm is currently in the process of raising capital 

for its Trade Capital Partners strategy (MRTCP), which we believe would be a suitable investment for the LCCPF 

Opportunity Pool.  

This paper provides a brief summary of the firm, an overview of trade finance and the MRTCP strategy and 

proposed Fund, and Hymans Robertson’s view. 

This paper constitutes a summary of what we believe to be the key investment considerations; it is not designed 

to be exhaustive and therefore should be considered in conjunction with the Fund documentation itself. We note 

that our comments are restricted to an investment perspective, and that we cannot give a legal view on the 

documentation supporting the Fund, nor the legal or tax aspects of investing in the fund. In preparing this paper 

we have relied upon documentation provided by Markham Rae.   

The note has not been prepared for use for any other purpose.  It should not be released or otherwise disclosed 

to any third party except as required by law or regulatory obligation or without our prior written consent.  We 

accept no liability where the note is used by, or released or otherwise disclosed to, a third party unless we have 

expressly accepted such liability in writing.  Where this is permitted, the note may only be released or otherwise 

disclosed in a complete form which fully discloses our advice and the basis on which it is given. 

Firm Background 

Markham Rae was formed in 2010 as a spin out from BNP Paribas investment bank’s London proprietary trading 

desk. The firm now employs 20 people, 8 of whom are investment professionals. Markham Rae has £400m in 

assets under management, of which £200m is managed on behalf of BNP Paribas London, since early 2011. The 

remainder is managed through two sub-funds for a number of clients.  

The Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners (MRTCP) business was setup in early 2014 by partners Luigi La Ferla, 

Jonathan Martin (one of the co-founders of Markham Rae) and Cameron Christie. MRTCP is a distinct strategy 

which will seek to provide bank capital relief exclusively to banks’ trade finance operations. All three partners of 

MRTCP previously worked together at BlueCrest, a London based hedge fund manager. Luigi and Cameron were 

responsible for managing BlueCrest’s Mercantile Fund, a hedge fund that invested in bonds and loans associated 

with trade finance and trade finance bank capital relief transactions. Jonathan was head of risk management and 

a member of the operating committee at BlueCrest.  

MRTCP is currently seeking to raise £500 – £750m in capital from institutional investors for a closed-ended fund 

which will invest in a bespoke portfolio of trade finance bank capital relief trade opportunities. To date the strategy 

has received £250m in committed capital from a small number of UK pension funds; the manager has said a 

further £150m is in the due diligence stage by potential investors. They expect to hold the first close of the Fund 

at £500m when they will start to deploy capital and expect to hold the final Fund close at £750m which they think 

will take a further 3 – 4 months, they will then have a 12 month period to fully deploy the money.  

 

13



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 002 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

Key features of the proposed investment  

The Fund Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners Fund I 

Investments 
A concentrated portfolio of 3-4 private transactions providing capital relief on 

bank’s trade finance portfolios only 

The Fund size maximum £750 million 

Legal Fund structure English Limited Partnership 

Term 
1 year investment period (extended to up to 6 months) plus a 5.25 year term – 

should be viewed as illiquid for the entire term 

Fees 1% p.a. management fee, plus a 15% profit share over a 8% hurdle rate 

Target return 10-12% (net of fees) per annum 

Distributions The premium is paid out to investors in the form of quarterly coupon payments  

Minimum investment £15 million 

Leverage The Fund is not permitted to employ leverage to make investments  

Fund currency USD 

What is trade finance  

Trade finance is the generic term which covers the financing and risk mitigation of cross-border trade. It refers to 

the debt that banks provide to be used to finance the global export of goods and services between countries. 

Trade finance differs from other types of lending as transactions must have an identifiable source of repayment, 

e.g. cash payment or title to the underlying goods. The debt is self-liquidating, short dated (averaging 150 days), 

and includes letters of credit, short term loans, guarantees and other instruments. In the event of bankruptcy, 

trade finance transactions have priority payment ahead of all other creditors.  

Historically, commercial banks have been the sole intermediaries in the trade finance market. However, 

increasingly stringent bank regulation, principally in the form of Basel III, has meant banks are being forced to 

hold increasing amounts of capital against their risk-weighted assets. Under the current regulatory requirements 

the method of calculating risk-weighted assets is to treat trade finance as the same level of risk as other forms of 

corporate lending. The calculation does not take into account the fact that trade finance has historically exhibited 

a lower default rate and loss experience relative to other corporate lending. This regulation has had the effect of 

making trade finance activity significantly less profitable for banks, despite it being a core part of many of these 

banks’ business activity.  Banks are increasingly withdrawing from this area of the market. The result is a 

concentrated number of banks operating in the space coupled with disintermediation as other non-banks lenders 

are entering the market.  

Overview of the strategy  

The MRTCP strategy will privately negotiate transactions with 3-4 primarily European banks to provide a 

mechanism of risk transfer to significantly reduce the cost of capital relating to each banks’ trade finance 

operations.  

Each transaction must be approved by the regulators before the transacting bank can receive capital relief. 

MRTCP will use the Fund’s investor capital to underwrite the loss risk associated with a sub-set of the transacting 

banks’ trade finance business. The strategy essentially provides a 5 year insurance policy to the bank (the term of 

the agreement), underwritten against the risk of default loss within the sub-set of transactions.  

14



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 003 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

The manager has said that they expect a typical transaction would see the bank retaining the first 1% of losses 

and the next 1% - 7% would transfer to MRTCP (illustrated in the example below). MRTCP has said that the 

trade-off between the transaction’s attachment and detachment point, the transaction premium, and the risk-

weighted asset relief afforded to the transacting bank suggests to them that the 1% - 7% deal structure is the 

most probable for the Fund.   However, the Fund is not restricted to a 1% - 7% tranche. 

 

 

 

One of the attractions of this strategy is that there is a strong alignment between the bank’s underwriting quality 

and investors through the bank retaining the first (1%) loss tranche.  

The bank is willing to pay a premium to MRTCP in order to transfer this risk and free up capital on its balance 

sheets. This premium is the return to investors in the Fund, less management fees. The premium will be 

distributed to Investors on a quarterly basis. Assuming no losses, the investor’s capital will be paid back at the 

end of the Fund’s term less management fees and the manager’s carry, over an 8% preferred return.  

Over the 5 year term the Fund’s capital will be held in a secure account invested in US treasuries. Trade finance 

is typically expressed in US dollars, and hence this avoids currency risk within the Fund (although we note that 

there is no sterling share class, and hence we suggest hedging the currency exposure at the Fund level back to 

sterling).  

The Fund’s investor capital will provide the overall level of cover. For example, if the Fund raises $500m, then this 

will be the total level of cover provided for all transactions entered into. In other words each transaction is fully 

collateralised and there is no leverage employed by MRTCP. 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment point: 1% 

Detachment point: 7% 

100% 

Bank Capital 

Requirement 

100% 

 

Example risk 

tranche protected 

by the Fund, 

reducing the bank's 

capital requirement 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

  

15



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 004 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

Portfolio structure 

  

Market size 

There is a natural capacity constraint given that there are a limited number of banks operating trade finance 

businesses and the size of their trade finance business is limited. MRTCP would never want to offer 100% 

insurance on a banks trade finance business as then the bank would lose all motivation to maintain standards 

within the business.  MRTCP estimates that approximately 5% of the global bank-intermediated trade finance 

capital requirements could be provided through the regulatory capital relief strategies, suggesting a potential 

market of $5bn. 

Key drivers and risks for the strategy  

The MRTCP Fund’s exposure is equivalent to the preferred equity of the counterparty banks rather than the 

overall credit risk associated with traditional debt investing. The success or otherwise of the strategy is therefore 

fully dependent on the strength of the transacting bank’s trade finance operating platform.  

There is a risk that MRTCP fails to negotiate attractive transactions with banks. However, they have said that they 

have already had a number of in depth discussions with potential counterparty banks and do not foresee getting 

the Fund capital invested as a serious risk. 

The principle risk of loss to the Fund is a deterioration of asset defaults within the sub-set of trade finance 

transactions, and in particular when the accumulated losses exceed the attachment point, when the Fund will 

start to experience capital erosion.  

16



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 005 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

Using the example illustrated on page 3, simplistically, if cumulated 5 year losses after recovery are 2% 

(equivalent to default of 1% per annum and recovery rate of 60%), investors will lose 16.7% of capital (i.e. (2%-

1%) / 6%).    

However, this capital loss would be compensated by premiums paid over the term of the transaction. So, if the 

premium is 14% flat per annum and by the end of the 5 year term losses are at 2%, resulting in a capital loss of 

16.7%, the net capital gain over the five years is still 5 * 14% - 16.6% = 53.4% or just over 10% per annum. 

This is illustrated by the following chart, which illustrates an example transaction paying 14% over a risk free rate, 

and a loss given default rate (LGD) assumed at 40%, i.e. recovery rate of 60%. 

 

Source: Markham Rae  

Note that for an annual default rate of less than 0.50% with recovery of 60%, there is no capital erosion, and the 

return to investor is the 14% premium plus a small amount of risk-free rate.  

For an annual default rate of between 0.90% and 1.2%, with recovery of 60%, the partnership Target Return of 

10%-12% is still met. If the annual default rate exceeds 2.2% per annum with recovery of 60% the Fund return 

goes negative. 

MRTCP’s case study transaction assumes a weighted-average rating of the portfolio underlying of BB, and 

assumes this credit risk rating for public debt markets equates to an annual probability of default of approx. 1.1%, 

which in the above example would mean the strategy could still expect a return to investors in the return target 

mid-range (11%) per annum.  

There is also a risk of early repayment of capital; if the transacting bank fails to fully replenish the portfolio within 

the agreed limits (this could be as a result of insufficient business within a set region, sector etc.) during the 5 

year cover period and therefore the bank terminates the policy cover. This would mean capital coming back to 

investors and given there may be only 3 transactions this could be a third of total investment. There would be no 

capital loss but the total yield on the investment would be much lower.  

 

17



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 006 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

To mitigate these risks MRTCP implements a rigorous due diligence process. The process begins with identifying 

appropriate banks to transact with. Pre-investment analysis includes but is not limited to; an assessment of a 

bank’s internal credit rating system, the bank’s credit process, the robustness of the bank’s trade finance 

operating platform, the trade client adoption process and product offering and the client base in terms of industry, 

country and credit instruments used.  

The second stage involves the structuring of the reference trade finance portfolio. MRTCP requires the 

transacting bank to provide details of a sub-set of their trade finance business along with the bank’s historic 

default and LGD experience within its trade finance business. This is the starting point for negotiating the 

transaction; MRTCP will seek to ensure that the reference portfolio meets a set of strict criteria as to the 

creditworthiness of the underlying transactions and is diversified to over 10,000 individual obligations, over 100 

entities, and 15 different countries, across multiple sectors. The reference portfolio is then stress tested to predict 

the outcomes in extreme scenarios.  Crucial to the investment process is setting the replenishment rules for the 

reference portfolio given the short term nature of this lending and the overall term of the cover, this involves not 

allowing replenishment for companies, countries or industries which are on watch or which have been 

downgraded at the bank level. 

By placing parameters around loan book, MRTCP aim to manage the level of expected defaults to fit the intended 

risk/return profile of the Fund. This is important as there is not a published market default rates for trade finance 

due to the private nature of the transactions.  

However, based on proprietary research, MRTCP identify that trade finance typically exhibits lower cumulative 

defaults and realised losses than outright unsecured loans of the same credit rating due to:  

· The short tenor and self-liquidating nature of trade finance transactions (average of 150 days for all 

products) significantly reduces downgrade risk when compared to other longer dated corporate lending. As  

typically credit fundamentals take longer to deteriorate and the strict replenishing rules mean any credit at 

risk of downgrade (on a watch list) cannot be replenished back into the sub-set portfolio;    

· Companies usually have total dependency on the products financed by trade finance (raw materials, goods 

for sale, etc.); these products which are not released until the trade finance credit is fully paid. Therefore, 

repayment is critical to the success of a borrowing business.  

Trade finance instruments have full lien on the underlying transactions’ assets. The insurance provided will only 

cover credit events in a portfolio limited to bankruptcy, failure to pay and restructuring at the underlying borrower 

level. Cover is not provided if the bank is in breach of replenishment rules. 

There are a number of key benefits for a bank to consider regulatory relief transactions for its trade finance 

business, the most notable being:   

· It provides synthetic equity in a cost effective non-dilutive basis to existing shareholders for the bank. And 

provides a true risk transfer mechanism making the counterparty bank more resilient in times of financial 

stress. Regulators in the main markets (US, UK, Finance and Germany) are supportive of these 

transactions.  

· While the cost to the bank is approximately 5% of the bank’s pre-tax underlying net income of the nominal 

amount of the transaction, the overall cost reduction to the risk-weighted asset capital requirement 

associated with the bank’s trade finance operations is significant, between 70% and 75%. Transactions 

will significantly increase the return on equity for a bank’s trade finance operation. 

18



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 007 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

Fees 

The management fee of 1% is on committed capital is deducted as a General Partner Share callable by the Fund 

General Partner each quarter. 

Performance fee is only payable to the Founder Partners of the partnership once investors have had all capital 

commitments returned to them, plus the 8% Preferred Return, plus the General Partner Share of 1% plus any 

partnership costs and expenses.  In practice, this can only occur at the termination of a transaction, as it is only 

then that there will be enough returned funds from the transaction collateral account to the partnership to allow it 

to repay investor capital commitments. So performance fee is not payable until transaction termination – 

effectively the fee is subordinated to the investor receiving their capital back, the Preferred Return, any General 

Partner Share back, and any partnership costs back. Only then is any performance fee paid, and there is a catch-

up at 100%, beyond which any remaining funds received by the partnership for distribution are paid 15% to the 

Founder Partner, 85% to investors. 

Hymans Robertson’s View 

We think there is a strong case for an investment in this strategy for those clients who can give up medium term 

liquidity. Due to the positioning of the investors’ provision of cover in the insurance structure It should be 

considered as a higher risk lending strategy with elements of equity like exposure rather than risks associated 

with secured debt .   

Perhaps the greatest current hurdle to demand is that investors do not have the luxury of seeing a tangible 

portfolio upfront. Instead, they rely on the skill of the investment manager in structuring these private transactions, 

and in the market environment being such that enough attractive opportunities are available. In our view there is a 

valid investment thesis for the opportunity set. Increasingly stringent regulatory requirements will continue to 

place pressure on banks to increase capital on the balance sheet. The benefit to the bank of transferring the risk 

to MRTCP is that they continue to operate trade finance, typically a core business activity, whilst increasing the 

return on regulatory capital. 

We believe that MRTCP is well positioned to manage this strategy. Luigi and Cameron have a proven track 

record in sourcing, structuring and managing regulatory capital relief trades backed by bank trade finance 

operations. The short term self-liquidating nature of a trade finance as an investment strategy has historically 

shown to be uncorrelated to the factors influencing a pension fund’s existing assets, namely broader economic, 

equity market, interest rate and inflation risk.  

The BlueCrest Mercantile Fund, which Luigi and Cameron previously managed, had over $3billion exposure to 

the strategy during the period 2008 – 2010 and the cumulative default amount for this period was below the 1% 

first loss threshold retained by the counterparty bank.    

The high level of return MRTCP target cannot be achieved without taking meaningful risk. In this instance the 

Fund would face the operational risks associated with the banks it enters into a transaction with. This risk is 

mitigated through the careful selection of each counterparty bank, the creation of the model portfolio and 

replenishments rules.  

Prepared by:- 

Andrew Green, Partner 

Claire Ballantyne, Bond Research Consultant  

Alison Clark, Research Consultant 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson  

June 2015 

19



MANAGER SUMMARY – MARKHAM RAE TRADE CAPITAL PARTNERS (MRTCP) 008 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

 

May 2015 

 

 

General Risk Warning  

Please note the value of investments, and income from them, may fall as well as rise. This includes equities, government or 

corporate bonds, and property, whether held directly or in a pooled or collective investment vehicle. Further, investments in 

developing or emerging markets may be more volatile and less marketable than in mature markets. Exchange rates may also 

affect the value of an overseas investment. As a result, an investor may not get back the amount originally invested. Past 

performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance. 

 

20


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2015.
	7 Recommended Investment in Markham Rae Trade Capital Partners I.
	7. Appendix - Note by Hymans Robertson


